




















 

 

651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

phone (916) 781-3636 
fax (916) 783-7693 
web www.ncpa.com 

Commission Staff Report   AGENDA ITEM NO.: _5_ 

Date:   July 20, 2017 

To:  NCPA Commission 

Subject:  July 5, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

 
The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral 
Committee report. 
 



 

 

 

651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

phone (916) 781-3636 
fax (916) 783-7693 
web www.ncpa.com 

 

Minutes 

To:  NCPA Facilities Committee 

From:  Michelle Schellentrager 

Subject:  July 5, 2017, Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

 
1. Call Meeting to Order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair 

Melissa Price at 9:02am.  A sign-in sheet was passed around.  Attending via teleconference 
and/or on-line presentation were Alan Hanger (Alameda), Mark Sorensen (Biggs), Paul Eckert 
(Gridley), Monica Padilla (Palo Alto), Steve Hance, Kathleen Hughes, Erika Jue, and Moises 
Melgoza (Santa Clara). Those attending in person are listed on the attached Attendee Sign-in 
Sheet.  Committee Representatives from BART, Biggs, Healdsburg, Turlock, TID, and Ukiah 
were absent.  A quorum of the Committee was established. 

 
 PUBLIC FORUM 
No public comment. 
 
Mike DeBortoli introduced the Black & Veatch representatives to the Committee.  
 
Dennis Sismaet introduced Lauren Belnap (Scheduling Coordinator, Power Management 
division) to the Committee.  
 

2. Approve Minutes from June 7, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting – The Meeting Minutes 
for the June 7, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting were not posted with enough notice for 
Members to review. Voting on these Minutes will be deferred until the August Facilities 
Committee Meeting. 
 

3. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA & SCPPA Members – Compliance 
Services, Inc. First Amendment – Staff recommended approval of a First Amendment to the 
five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Compliance Services, Inc.  This 
Amendment would expand the scope of work (Exhibit A) to include additional services. 
Compliance Services, Inc. provides Pipeline Hazardous Materials Safety Administration 
(PHMSA) services in the form of written programs, reports, online training, and audits. This is an 
enabling agreement, and no funds are being committed at this time. A draft Commission Staff 
Report was available for review 
 
Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang 
recommending Commission approval of a First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement with Compliance Services, Inc., with any non-substantial changes recommended 
and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,500,000 over five 
years for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA Members.  A vote was taken by roll call: 
YES = Alameda, Biggs, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. 
The motion passed. 
 
 



 

July 5, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2 

4. Black & Veatch Energy Storage Presentation – Representatives from Black & Veatch gave 
background on battery storage solutions for energy. Representatives reviewed the storage 
technologies currently available, as well as future storage technologies. Lithium ion batteries are 
currently the most common and reliable technology for renewables integration, and offer the 
highest storage capacities per unit volume and per unit weight. Trends are moving towards 
containerized solutions, which can stand exposure to the elements. Representatives shared a 
number of graphs outlining marketplace trends and detailing use cases for various energy 
storage solutions. Black & Veatch have seen an increased interest in behind the meter and 
solar storage. To increase the cost-effectiveness of the batteries, most buyers also use batteries 
for multiple applications.  
 
Black & Veatch concluded that a pure capacity market is not economically viable at this point. 
While battery prices have fallen due to demand increasing and manufacturing costs decreasing, 
breakeven costs are still high.  
 

5. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA – TCB Industrial, Inc. – Staff 
recommended approval of a five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TCB 
Industrial, Inc., with a not to exceed amount of $1,000,000. TCB Industrial, Inc. has a strong 
emphasis in hydro applications and favorable rates. NCPA has similar agreements in place with 
a number of other companies focusing on field service repairs, inspection, and consultations, 
such as Adritz Hydro and ProEnergy Services. This is an enabling agreement, and no funds are 
being committed at this time. A draft Commission Staff Report was available for review 
 
Motion: A motion was made by Mike Brozo and seconded by Shannon McCann recommending 
Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TCB Industrial Inc. for 
service, inspection, consultation on turbines, generators, auxiliary equipment, and hydraulic 
systems, with any nonsubstantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General 
Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or 
operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), 
or by SCPPA Members.  A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, 
Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed. 
 

6. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA – Gold Electric, Inc. – Staff 
recommended approval of a five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Gold 
Electric, Inc. for various electrical maintenance services, such alignment of communication 
tower footings, equipment rental, and maintenance of electrical, communication, control and 
security systems, with a not to exceed amount of $1,000,000. NCPA has similar agreements 
with Knights’ Electric and Radco Communications. This is an enabling agreement, and no funds 
are being committed at this time. A draft Commission Staff Report was available for review 
 
Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Mike Brozo recommending 
Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Gold Electric, Inc. for 
electrical maintenance services and support, equipment rental, and maintenance of electrical 
communication, control and security systems, with any non-substantial changes recommended 
and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five 
years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA (except LEC), its Members, by the 
Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members. A vote was 
taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, 
Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed. 

  



 

July 5, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 3 

 
7. Beaver Creek Reservoir and Related Facilities Project – Staff recommended approval 

authorizing an increase in not to exceed amount for all agreements related to the Beaver Creek 
Reservoir and related projects from $1,000,000 to $2,5000,000. Staff explained that the 
increase is due to the fact that the original NTE amount was recommended while the detailed 
scope and costs were still under development. The cost increase is due to there being more 
debris then initially thought, as well as the USFS denying NCPA’s request to use USFS lands 
and/or reuse materials removed from the reservoir on USFS lands. The type of debris being 
removed also mean that the suction dredging costs are greater than initially anticipated.  
 
The diversion dam remains out of service. Staff estimates the average annual foregone power 
generation is around $1.7m. Staff expressed concerns that next year’s diversion could be lost if 
we do not act quickly.  
 
Funds for the repairs are coming from the regular Beaver Creek dredging budget, with 
additional funds coming from the Hydro Maintenance Reserve and the Capitol Development 
Reserve funding accounts. As of July 1 (FY18) there is currently $0.675 million available in the 
budget for Beaver Creek dredging.   
 
There are multiple insurance claims still pending as well. Staff reviewed the FEMA and CalOES 
reimbursement requests and amounts with Members. Members asked about a timeline for 
FEMA reimbursement. Staff acknowledged that reimbursement from FEMA can take time, and 
that Members should plan on reimbursement taking a couple of years. Members requested a 
breakdown on estimated eligible/ineligible costs from FEMA. FEMA requires insurance to pay 
first, however, Staff said ineligible costs would include removal of any sediments received prior 
to the January storm event. Indications point to most costs being covered by FEMA.  
 
Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Alan Hangar 
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager to enter into one or 
more agreements, with a total not-to-exceed for all agreements of $2,500,000 for repair, 
restoration and/or replacement of portions of the Beaver Creek Reservoir and related facilities at 
the NCPA Hydroelectric Project. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, 
Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed. 
 

8. Generation Services Outage Schedule – Representatives from the Generation Services 
department reviewed the proposed 2018 Outage Schedules, and sought approval for revision to 
the 2017 Outage Schedule. The 2018 Outage Schedules will be voted on in the August 2017 
Facilities Committee Meeting. 
 
Hydro Outages: Staff shared the proposed outage dates for 2018. The Spicer outage dates are 
currently scheduled for September; this is an optimum time from a market accessibility 
standpoint. The Collierville outages scheduled for October 2018 are consistent with what was 
approved for 2017. Staff are proposing an extended outage of Collierville Unit 2 in November 
2018, for the stator repair/full unit rewind (required to permanently fix that unit).  

 
CT’s Outages: Staff recommended Commission approval of updated 2017 Outage Schedule 
for CT’s. Staff is proposing an outage of CT1 Lodi in September 2017 to replace the bushings in 
the unit. These parts are prone to catastrophic failure, and Staff does not recommend waiting 
until the spring 2018 outages to complete these repairs.  

  



 

July 5, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 4 

 
Staff also reviewed the proposed outage dates for CT’s for 2018. The outages proposed in 
spring 2018 for CT1 Alameda and CT1 Lodi are both for routine maintenance.  
 
Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Mike Brozo recommending 
Commission approval of the updated 2017 Outage Schedule. A vote was taken by roll call: YES 
= Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. 
The motion passed. 

 
Geo Outages: Geo shared their proposed 2018 Outage Schedule. Geo outages are flexible, 
and are being scheduled for required Stretford maintenance. The outages are staggered by one 
week so that equipment required for the outages can be reused and transferred between sites, 
minimizing transportation costs to/from the Geo site.  

 
9. Generation Services Plant Updates – Representatives from the Generation Services 

department gave updates on how each plant weathered the recent heatwave.  
 
Hydro Update: The biggest challenges encountered by Hydro during the June heat wave was 
the Collierville Unit 2 outage, and tailwater curtailment due to the large volume of water. Staff 
had to fluctuate PMAX at CAISO to prevent self-tripping. Staff shared a breakdown of lost 
revenues as a result of these issues. Ken Goeke and Phil Mensonides are working on revised 
modeling plans for bidding the Spicer units more efficiently.  

 
CT’s Update: Staff reviewed the issues encountered by CT’s during the heat wave. STIG ran 
well, however, there were a number of forced outages and other minor issues. Despite the 
issues, LEC had relatively good revenue during the heatwave with a significant increase in 
runtime hours.  
 
Geo Update: Geo encountered issues during the June heat wave with the Unit 4 cooling tower. 
Staff explained how the efficiency of the cooling tower decreases as temperatures increase. 
Temperatures at Geo were about 20° higher than average which resulted in approximately 2.7 
MW above regular loses for this time of year. Staff shared estimated values lost during the heat 
wave.  

 
10. Power Management Revenue Allocation Update – James Takehara shared an update on 

revenue allocation, as well as information on potential implementation. James reviewed the 
rationale of the UD group in forming their final revenue allocation recommendation. The UD’s 
will be recommending that 10% of revenues received will be allocated exclusively to Members, 
based on their contributions to A&G expenses, while the remaining 90% of revenues will be 
allocated to both Members and non-Member Project Participants using the Nexant cost 
allocation model. The UD’s have also recommended that revenue allocation to non-Members 
begin at the end of year budget true up. The final recommendation will be brought to the 
Commission at the August meeting.  
 
James also shared concepts for future consideration, including looking further at the margin 
(between cost of services and market value) and whether that margin should be included in the 
90% allocated to Members and non-Members. There was discussion by the Committee on 
implementing an “Enterprise Funding Structure”. Palo Alto expressed a desire to expand upon 
the UD’s recommendation for periodic review of the revenue allocation policy, to include some 
mention of the concept of tying new revenues to how profitable they are in the revenue 
allocation for Members/non-Members. Roseville proposed adding an additional item to the final 
recommendation stating that, when margins occur, revenues will only be allocated to Members, 
with details to be determined later.  
 

  



 

July 5, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 5 

 
11. Merced Irrigation District Transition Update – Dennis Sismaet provided an update on the 

MEID transition. Service started on Saturday, July 1. NCPA now has control of Merced’s three 
hydro projects. There were minor issues with the initial transition, which required the three units 
to be under manual control for the first few days, but those issues have since been resolved.  

 
12. Planning and Operations Update  

 
- TO18: The TO18 proceeding continues to advance. Testimony from the intervener 

group is due on July 5. The discovery request from PG&E has been delayed. The 
trial for the proceeding is scheduled for January, with a ruling expected in June 
2018.  

- Transmission Planning Process: NCPA continues to meet with PG&E to work on 
development of an Order 890 compliant transmission planning process. There is a 
sample proposal out for review.  

- Modesto Irrigation District: MID has requested a proposal for Membership from 
NCPA last month. The proposal has been sent and MID is currently reviewing it.  

- PCWA: With the successful onboarding of MEID, work will now begin on PCWA 
integration, with a full focus on forming operating required operating procedures 
(similar to the process that was just completed for Merced).   

- Sierra Valley Energy: Sierra Valley Energy has indicated they are submitting the 
required paperwork to register with the CAISO.  

- Shasta Lake: NCPA is still waiting on a final decision on whether Shasta Lake 
plans to take Power Management Services; NCPA anticipates a final decision from 
Shasta Lake within the next few weeks.  

- On July 12th there will be a CMUA Meeting with the EIM Board regarding how TAC 
are allocated and defined now. This meeting will also discuss the Clean Energy 
Coalition request.  

- The City of Lathrop has renewed their contract with Calpine for Power 
Management Services, but have said they may touch base with NCPA in the 
future.  

- NCPA had submitted a request to the UD’s regarding a proposal to SCPPA for 
scheduling coordination services for a solar project in their area, however, SCPPA 
opted to select their existing service provider.  

- Ken Speer provided an update on the Gas Transportation Case. PG&E has started 
the 19 gas rate case; in this latest case, PG&E is proposing shutting down two of 
their storage fields (required retrofits would be too costly), with a plan to drill new 
wells and outsource a portion of their storage. Core customers currently pay 70% 
of PG&E’s storage costs. PG&E is proposing a cost shift in the 19 rate case, where 
the core would cover 20% of storage costs, and the remaining 70% would be 
covered by backbone customers. NCPA has also filed a petition of modification 
with the NCGC in response to the PG&E 16 gas rate case, asking the CPUC to 
consider carbon emissions for electric generators when setting gas rates. NCPA is 
working with the NCGC group, as well as other gas generator providers, and will 
provide further updates to the Committee when they become available. 
 

13. Schedule next meeting date – the next regular Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for 
August 2, 2017.   
 

UADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:01pm. 

























































































































































































































































































RESOLUTION NO. 17-65 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF THE  
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

 
In Commendation Of 

 

GARY PLASS 
 

 
WHEREAS, Gary Plass served the “beautiful” City of Healdsburg for 28 years as a police officer and13 years as a 

member of the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, during his 13 year tenure as a NCPA Commissioner, Gary served in numerous leadership positions 

including Chair of the Commission, Officer of the Executive Committee, Chair of the Legislative and Regulatory Affairs 
Committee, and Chair of the Finance Committee; and 

 
WHEREAS, under his chairmanship, NCPA constructed and brought online the Lodi Energy Center, a 300 MW 

gas-fired, combined-cycle system that was one of the first in the nation to take advantage of “fast-start” technology to 
reduce emissions; and 

 
WHEREAS, Gary led the successful efforts to update and revise NCPA’s Bylaws and new member policies, and 

was an instrumental member of the executive search team that ushered in NCPA’s distinguished general manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gary understood the value of public power, joint action and local control, he was a strong and tireless 

advocate on Capitol Hill and in the State Capitol on behalf of NCPA and his constituents; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gary played a key role in the debate on the sale of NCPA’s drill rig, a debate he lost, but still considers 

to be an ongoing active Commission item; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gary, hailing from Sonoma County, the alleged “wine capitol of California,” has voluntarily served as 

NCPA’s in-house sommelier; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gary has been a generous supplier of highly prized promotional items (including high quality pens 

and sewing kits) to NCPA members and staff; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency, that this 
Agency, its members, and its employees recognize and commend Gary Plass for his dedication and service to the public 
power community and to NCPA. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Northern California Power Agency Commission deeply appreciates and 

thanks Gary Plass for his leadership and numerous contributions to the Agency—including serving as a strong and 
effective policy advocate in many important state and federal debates; his loyal commitment to the cause of public 
power and the citizens of the “beautiful” City of Healdsburg; and his unflagging friendship to members and staff of NCPA, 
and wish him all the very best in his future endeavors.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY ACCLAMATION, on this 27th day of July 2017.  

 
 
 
__________________________       ________________________________  
BOB LINGL                 ATTEST:  CARY A. PADGETT 
CHAIR    ASSISTANT SECRETARY 


	Minutes_Draft_062917
	Item_5_FAC_Draft_Min_070517
	Item_10_Financial_Report_June_2017
	Item_11_Treasurers_Report_June_2017
	Item_12_Sale_Disposal_Surplus_Property
	Item_13_TCB_Industrial_Agreement
	Item_14_Gold_Electric_Agreement
	Item_15_Compliance_Services_Agreement
	Item_16_Amendment_One_Aon_Risk_Services_West_Agreement
	Item_17_Beaver_Creek_Reservoir_Repair
	Item_19_Resolution_GaryPlass

